PENSORD TWENTY10 LIMITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 DECEMBER 2021

SATURDAY

A07 03/12/2022 COMPANIES HOUSE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTENTS	PAGE
Officers and professional advisers	1
Strategic report	2
Directors' report	4
Independent auditor's report to the members	6
Consolidated profit and loss account	10
Consolidated balance sheet	11
Balance sheet	12
Consolidated statement of changes in equity	13
Company statement of changes in equity	14
Consolidated cash flow statement	15
Notes to the financial statements	16

OFFICERS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS

The board of directors

Mr D J Coxon

Mr K Gater

Company secretary

R Best

Registered office

Pensord Tram Road Pontllanfraith Blackwood

NP12 2YA

Auditor

Kilsby & Williams LLP

Chartered Accountants & statutory auditor

Cedar House Hazell Drive Newport NP10 8FY

STRATEGIC REPORT

Year ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Review of the Business

We entered 2021 with further lockjaw measures in place in the UK and these would remain common place for much of the first half of the year and come back into place at year end.

The impacts of this continued to be widely felt across our sector with no sign of a return to face to face events: continued home working impacting circulation of B2B publications, lifestyle and community magazines and restrictions on sales outlets.

Once lockdowns were lifted in the summer of 2021 this created a surge in annual leave requests that put pressure on business due to the sheer volume of absence as people sought a break after 18 months of restrictions; increased absence through quarantine as rules changed frequently and increasing covid symptoms as people began to mix again.

In the latter half of the year further waves of infection and then the omicron variant meant that our business and other partner businesses suffered badly with peaking absence and increasing cost as we attempted to maintain productivity.

In many ways 2021 was worse than 2020 with reducing support from government and increasing anxiety in all walks of life, amongst staff, suppliers and clients, all suffering fatigue from months and months of challenging living and working conditions.

Sadly as 2021 comes to an end, restrictions are once again in place as the Omicron variant takes a grip on the UK.

Our normal patterns of managing people; performance; efficiency; delivering on expected service levels and developing our service offering were once again disrupted to simply managing throughput as best as we could given the restrictions and challenges the world faced.

The group faced financial challenges with significantly increased running costs to cover daily unplanned absence and so meeting client's needs.

In the latter part of the year increasing energy costs were impacting the supply chain and so costs to the end client were increasing rapidly as paper and other consumable costs rose.

As always we remain optimistic about the coming year, especially having successfully navigated yet another difficult period. It is hoped that an end to the pandemic in early 2022 will see a return to 'normal' demand brought about by an uplift in the economy however we are mindful that this may be tempered by ongoing price rises.

The main manufacturing unit coped well with a changing mix of work with book work now forming approximately 40% of revenue and the market returning to decent volumes towards the end of the year. The contractual work continued to be the bedrock of income but has been slower to recover for a variety of issues related to the disruption faced over the last 2 years.

Cash management continued to be the focus, ahead of P&L and we were able to return half a million pounds of CBILS unused and convert the remaining loan into an overdraft facility.

We are proud of our business and employees for the way in which we have handled two years of a pandemic and maintaining our presence as one of the UK's leading sheetfed printing businesses.

Having cut overheads significantly during the covid pan-demic we predict a return. Group Sales for the full year 2021 increased to £11,378,811 up £142k on 2020 (1.27%). A loss of £572k was reported in the year (-21% v 2020).

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Principal risks and uncertainties

The risks and uncertainties associated with the printing industry remain unchanged from previous years, with over-capacity and margin pressure still prevalent. The Board believes it has taken the most appropriate steps to meet these challenges and, as far as possible, control the aspects of the business it can control. General instability caused by Brexit continues to be a risk to the business with a concern over the continuing weakening of the pound and the impact on materials that are source predominantly from Europe.

Financial key performance indicators

Despite reducing the size of the business in 2020 the key financial indicators remain the same - turnover, gross margin and EBITDA. Our ability to achieve the key numbers has been improved by the restructuring, with less capacity to fill and therefore cost to cover and less debt to service.

This report was approved by the board of directors on .00.11-2027. and signed on behalf of the

D J Coxon

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Year ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their report and the financial statements of the group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors

The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:

Mr D J Coxon Mr K Gater

Dividends

Particulars of recommended dividends are detailed in note 15 to the financial statements.

Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and the profit or loss of the group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

- so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group and the company's auditor is unaware; and
- they have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of
 any relevant audit information and to establish that the group and the company's auditor is aware of
 that information.

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

This report was approved by the board of directors on .08:11.2022... and signed on behalf of the

alid by:

D J Coxon



Year ended 31 December 2021

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pensord Twenty10 Limited (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries (the 'group') for the year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated balance sheet, balance sheet, consolidated statement of changes in equity, company statement of changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

We draw your attention to note 3 in the financial statements, which indicates a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material



Year ended 31 December 2021

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- · certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.



Year ended 31 December 2021

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the company and the industry in which it operates, and considered the risk of acts by the company that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We designed audit procedures to respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

We focussed on laws and regulations which could give rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements, including, but not limited to, the Companies Act 2006 and UK tax legislation. Our tests included agreeing the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation, enquiries with management and enquiries of legal counsel. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. We did not identify any key audit matters relating to irregularities, including fraud. As in all our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
 fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
 evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
 a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
 involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
 control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
 that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of the group's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group's or the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the



Year ended 31 December 2021

group or the parent company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
 We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Simon Tee (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of

Kilsby & Williams LLP Chartered Accountants & statutory auditor Cedar House Hazell Drive Newport NP10 8FY

10.11.2022

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Year ended 31 December 2021

	Note	2021 £	2020 £
TURNOVER	5	11,378,811	11,236,665
Cost of sales		(7,368,000)	(7,614,131)
GROSS PROFIT		4,010,811	3,622,534
Distribution costs		-	(2,204)
Administrative expenses	_	(4,545,573)	(5,550,756)
Other operating income	6	279,627	1,157,028
OPERATING LOSS	7	(255,135)	(773,398)
Other interest receivable and similar income	12	5,264	5,312
Interest payable and similar expenses	13	(199,011)	(104,686)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION		(448,882)	(872,772)
Tax on loss	14	(123,507)	149,587
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR		(572,389)	(723,185)
Revaluation of tangible assets		1,151,038	591,561
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR		578,649	(131,624)

All the activities of the group are from continuing operations.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2021

	Note	2021 £	2020 £
FIXED ASSETS Tangible assets	17	6,506,687	5,845,985
CURRENT ASSETS Stocks Debtors Cash at bank and in hand	19 20	350,249 2,261,321 14,670 2,626,240	274,743 2,240,271 106,711 2,621,725
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year	21	(4,376,261)	(3,958,057)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES		(1,750,021) 4,756,666	(1,336,332) 4,509,653
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year	22	(3,322,865)	(3,737,937)
PROVISIONS NET ASSETS	24	(533,989) 899,812	(410,482) 361,234
CAPITAL AND RESERVES Called up share capital Revaluation reserve Profit and loss account	28 29 29	70,000 1,742,599 (912,787)	70,000 591,561 (300,327)
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS		899,812	361,234

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 100:11:1002, and are signed on behalf of the board by:

Mr D J Coxon

Company registration number: 07276771

BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2021

	Note	2021 £	2020 £
FIXED ASSETS Investments	18	4,185,353	4,185,353
CURRENT ASSETS		,,200,000	1,200,000
Debtors	20	411,614	450,001
Cash at bank and in hand		12	12
		411,626	450,013
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year	21	(125)	(78,583)
NET CURRENT ASSETS		411,501	371,430
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES		4,596,854	4,556,783
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year	22	(4,526,545)	(4,526,545)
NET ASSETS		70,309	30,238
CAPITAL AND RESERVES			
Called up share capital	28	70,000	70,000
Profit and loss account	29	309	(39,762)
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS		70,309	30,238

The profit for the financial year of the parent company was £40,071 (2020: £Nil).

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 100.11.2022., and are signed on behalf of the board by:

Mr D J Coxon

Director

Company registration number: 07276771

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

		Called up share capital	Revaluation reserve	Profit and loss account	Total
	Note	E Capital	£	£	£
AT 1 JANUARY 2020		70,000		462,928	532,928
Loss for the year Other comprehensive income for the year: Revaluation of tangible assets	17		F01 F61	(723,185)	(723,185)
_			591,561		591,561
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR T YEAR	THE	-	591,561	(723,185)	(131,624)
Dividends paid and payable	15			(40,070)	(40,070)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS BY AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS		_	-	(40,070)	(40,070)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020		70,000	591,561	(300,327)	361,234
Loss for the year Other comprehensive income for the year:				(572,389)	(572,389)
Revaluation of tangible assets	17	-	1,151,038	_	1,151,038
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR T	HE				
YEAR		-	1,151,038	(572,389)	578,649
Dividends paid and payable	15	_	_	(40,071)	(40,071)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS BY AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS		-	-	(40,071)	(40,071)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2021		70,000	1,742,599	(912,787)	899,812

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

	sh	Called up are capital £	Profit and loss account £	Total £
AT 1 JANUARY 2020		70,000	309	70,309
Profit for the year			-	_
Dividends paid and payable	15		(40,071)	(40,071)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS BY AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS		-	(40,071)	(40,071)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020		70,000	309	70,309
Profit for the year			40,071	40,071
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR		_	40,071	40,071
Dividends paid and payable	15	_	(40,071)	(40,071)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS BY AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS		_	(40,071)	(40,071)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2021		70,000	309	70,309

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

	2021 £	2020 £
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Loss for the financial year	(572,389)	(723,185)
Adjustments for:		
Depreciation of tangible assets	615,047	573,510
Amortisation of intangible assets Government grant income	(270 627)	105,579
Other interest receivable and similar income	(279,627) (5,264)	(1,147,607) (5,312)
Interest payable and similar expenses	199,011	104,686
Gains on disposal of tangible assets	-	(361,207)
Tax on profit	123,507	(149,587)
Accrued expenses	58,662	122,679
Changes in:		
Stocks	(75,506)	280,829
Trade and other debtors	(141,094)	912,718
Trade and other creditors	168,150	(617,928)
Cash generated from operations	90,497	(904,825)
Interest paid	(199,011)	(104,686)
Interest received	5,264	5,312
Tax received	79,973	95,650
Net cash used in operating activities	(23,277)	(908,549)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Purchase of tangible assets	(124,711)	(31,000)
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets		891,200
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities	(124,711)	860,200
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
Proceeds from borrowings	_	250,000
Repayments of borrowings	(68,659)	(50,732)
Government grant income	279,627	1,147,607
Payments of finance lease liabilities	(406,682)	(800,740)
Sales invoice financing	251,661	(407,332)
Net cash from financing activities	55,947	138,803
NET (DECREACE) (THEORETE THE CASH AND CASH POLICY TOTAL	(02.041)	00.454
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	(92,041)	90,454
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR	106,711	16,257
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR	14,670	106,711

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The company is a private company limited by shares, registered in England & Wales. The address of the registered office is Pensord Tram Road, Pontllanfraith, Blackwood, NP12 2YA.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS 102, 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland'.

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities and investment properties measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity.

Going concern

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the group will continue to trade for the foreseeable future despite making losses in the current and previous year. The directors though continue to maintain and update all planning and forecasting tools and they consider the group to be well placed to deal with any challenges ahead.

The uncertainty of energy price increases has affected all UK businesses and presents significant challenges. The level of government support after the initial 6-months ending March 2023, is also uncertain.

The directors have prepared detailed forecasts for a period extending at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. On the basis of this review, taking into account (i) the general economic position of the sector, (ii) the wider macro-economic environment, particularly inflation and energy costs and (iii) continuing future prospects, they consider that the group will remain in a position to finance its operations and meet all financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. Post year end the groups directors have arranged a new re-financing package, to reduce committed liability payments and increase available facilities. This has been incorporated into the forecasts and will improve liquidity immediately once signed.

Given the current trading vs budget the directors believe the group is well placed to manage its business risks and working capital cash flows successfully. After reviewing the forecasts and projections, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Therefore the directors are satisfied that the company is a going concern based on post year end trading and forecasts prepared. The financial statements have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not include any adjustments should the going concern basis of preparation be inappropriate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Disclosure exemptions

The parent company satisfies the criteria of being a qualifying entity as defined in FRS 102. As such, advantage has been taken of the following reduced disclosures available under FRS 102:

- (a) Disclosures in respect of each class of share capital have not been presented.
- (b) No cash flow statement has been presented for the company.
- (c) Disclosures in respect of financial instruments have not been presented.
- (d) No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of key management personnel.

Consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Pensord Twenty10 Limited and all of its subsidiary undertakings.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included from or to the date that control passes.

The parent company has applied the exemption contained in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its individual profit and loss account.

Turnover

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered, net of discounts and Value Added Tax.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer (usually on despatch of the goods); the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable that the associated economic benefits will flow to the entity; and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactions can be measured reliably.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements in order to provide further understanding of the financial performance of the entity. They are material items of income or expense that have been shown separately because of their nature or amount.

Taxation

The taxation expense represents the aggregate amount of current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is recognised on taxable profit for the current and past periods. Current tax is measured at the amounts of tax expected to pay or recover using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Lease payments are recognised as an expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of lease incentives is recognised as a reduction to expense over the lease term, on a straight-line basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on business acquisitions and represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company's interest in the net amount of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired business.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. It is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Where a reliable estimate of the useful life of goodwill or intangible assets cannot be made, the life is presumed not to exceed ten years.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value, over the useful life of that asset as follows:

Goodwill - 10% straight line

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in amortisation rate, useful life or residual value of an intangible asset, the amortisation is revised prospectively to reflect the new estimates.

Invoice discounting facility

The company has in place an invoice discount facility based on the value of trade receivables. Under this arrangement the company has retained both the credit and late payment risk associated with the receivables. As the company has retained substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the receivables, it continues to recognise the receivables in the balance sheet with advances from the facility provider treated as a separate liability.

The expenses associated with this facility are included within interest payable within the profit & loss account.

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are initially recorded at cost, and subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Any tangible assets carried at revalued amounts are recorded at the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An increase in the carrying amount of an asset as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. A decrease in the carrying amount of an asset as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation increase accumulated in equity in respect of that asset. Where a revaluation decrease exceeds the accumulated revaluation gains accumulated in equity in respect of that asset, the excess shall be recognised in profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost or valuation of an asset, less its residual value, over the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Freehold property

20% straight line

Plant and machinery

5 to 15 years straight line

Motor vehicles

25% straight line

Investments

Fixed asset investments are initially recorded at cost, and subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Listed investments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss.

Stocks

Stocks are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the stock to its present location and condition.

Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are recognised in the balance sheet as assets and liabilities at the lower of the fair value of the assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments, which is determined at the inception of the lease term. Any initial direct costs of the lease are added to the amount recognised as an asset.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the outstanding lease liability using the effective interest method. Finance charges are allocated to each period so as to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at the fair value of the asset received or receivable. Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised using the accrual model and the performance model.

Under the accrual model, government grants relating to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis over the periods in which the company recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs are recognised in income in the period in which it becomes receivable.

Grants relating to assets are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the asset. Where part of a grant relating to an asset is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income and not deducted from the carrying amount of the asset.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Under the performance model, where the grant does not impose specified future performance-related conditions on the recipient, it is recognised in income when the grant proceeds are received or receivable. Where the grant does impose specified future performance-related conditions on the recipient, it is recognised in income only when the performance-related conditions have been met. Where grants received are prior to satisfying the revenue recognition criteria, they are recognised as a liability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event, it is probable that the entity will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. Provisions are recognised as a liability in the balance sheet and the amount of the provision as an expense.

Provisions are initially measured at the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and subsequently reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of the amount that would be required to settle the obligation. Any adjustments to the amounts previously recognised are recognised in profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of the cost of an asset. When a provision is measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation, the unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period it arises.

Financial instruments

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised only when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at the transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where it is recognised at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Where investments in non-convertible preference shares and non-puttable ordinary shares or preference shares are publicly traded or their fair value can otherwise be measured reliably, the investment is subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. All other such investments are subsequently measured at cost less impairment.

Other financial instruments, including derivatives, are initially recognised at fair value, unless payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal business terms or financed at a rate of interest that is not a market rate, in which case the asset is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Other financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, with any changes recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship.

Financial assets that are measured at cost or amortised cost are reviewed for objective evidence of impairment at the end of each reporting date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

For all equity instruments regardless of significance, and other financial assets that are individually significant, these are assessed individually for impairment. Other financial assets are either assessed individually or grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Any reversals of impairment are recognised in profit or loss immediately, to the extent that the reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been recognised.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

When contributions are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the end of the reporting date in which the employees render the related service, the liability is measured on a discounted present value basis. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

4. JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. These estimates and judgements are continually reviewed and are based on experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Accounting estimates and assumptions are made concerning the future and, by their nature, will rarely equal the related actual outcome. The key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

Recoverability of trade debtors

Provisions have been made for trade debtors. This provision is an estimate and the actual costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events. The difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period when such determination is made.

Depreciation

The company exercises judgement to determine useful lives of tangible fixed assets. These assets are amortised over their useful lives.

5. TURNOVER

Turnover arises from:

2021 2020 £ £ .11,378,811 11,236,665

Sale of goods

The whole of the turnover is attributable to the principal activity of the group wholly undertaken in the United Kingdom.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

		2021 £	2020 £
	Government grant income Other operating income	279,627 –	1,147,607 9,421
		279,627	1,157,028
7.	OPERATING PROFIT		
	Operating profit or loss is stated after charging/crediting:		
		2021 £	2020 £
	Amortisation of intangible assets	_	105,579
	Depreciation of tangible assets	615,047	573,510
	Gains on disposal of tangible assets	_	(361,207)
	Impairment of trade debtors	24,996	122,558
8.	AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION		
		2021 £	2020 £
	Fees payable for the audit of the financial statements	23,000	23,000
	Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services: Taxation compliance services	6,000	6,000

9. STAFF COSTS

The average number of persons employed by the group during the year, including the directors, amounted to:

	2021 No.	2020 No.
Production staff	79	81
Administrative staff	39	70
Number of other staff - desc in a/c	6	6
	124	157

The aggregate payroll costs incurred during the year, relating to the above, were:

	2021 £	2020 £
Wages and salaries	3,929,499	4,574,479
Social security costs	340,850	402,854
Other pension costs	145,684	155,923
	4,416,033	5,133,256

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors' aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was:		
	2021 £	2020 £
Remuneration	339,304	388,172
Company contributions to defined contribution pension plans	54,796	21,237
	394,100	409,409
The number of directors who accrued benefits under company pension plans		
	2021	2020
Defined contribution plans	No. 3	No.
- San Caracan Prants	OCCUPANTA.	
Remuneration of the highest paid director in respect of qualifying services:		
	2021	2020
	£	£
Aggregate remuneration	143,425	115,087
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS		

11. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

	Group		Compa	ny
	2021	2020	2021	2020
	£	£	£	£
Exceptional expenses	_	2,139,466	_	
Exceptional income	_	(1,861,400)	-	_
		278,066	_	_
			EN CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF T	***************************************

2021

2020

Exceptional items relate to significant restructuring costs and necessary fixed asset sales.

12. OTHER INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

		£	£
	Interest on cash and cash equivalents	_	11
	Other interest receivable and similar income	5,264	5,301
		5,264	5,312
13.	INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES		
		2021 £	2020 £
	Interest on banks loans and overdrafts Interest on obligations under finance leases and hire purchase	32,883	20,061
	contracts	142,991	60,891
	Other interest payable and similar charges	23,137	23,734
		199,011	104,686

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

14. TAX ON PROFIT

Major components of tax income

	2021 £	2020 £
Current tax:		
UK current tax income		(79,973)
Deferred tax:		
Origination and reversal of timing differences	123,507	(69,614)
Tax on profit	123,507	(149,587)

Reconciliation of tax expense/(income)

The tax assessed on the loss on ordinary activities for the year is higher than (2020: higher than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 38%).

	2021 £	2020 £
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation	(448,882)	(872,772)
Loss on ordinary activities by rate of tax	(21,237)	(165,826)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior periods	-	(78,873)
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes	16,958	74,005
Effect of capital allowances and depreciation	1,976	786
Marginal relief/rate differences	128,157	20,321
Deferred tax not recognised	(2,347)	
Tax on profit	123,507	(149,587)

15. DIVIDENDS

	2021	2020
	£	£
Dividends paid during the year (excluding those for which a liability		
existed at the end of the prior year)	40,071	40,071

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group	Goodwill £
Cost At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021	1,144,655
Amortisation At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021	1,144,655
Carrying amount At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021	
At 31 December 2020	-

The company has no intangible assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

17. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Group	Freehold property £	Plant and machinery £	Total £
Cost			
At 1 January 2021	1,905,357	6,059,110	7,964,467
Additions	25,304	99,407	124,711
Revaluations		295,000	295,000
At 31 December 2021	1,930,661	6,453,517	8,384,178
Depreciation			
At 1 January 2021	1,018,067	1,100,415	2,118,482
Charge for the year	12,551	602,496	615,047
Revaluations	(199,957)	(656,081)	(856,038)
At 31 December 2021	830,661	1,046,830	1,877,491
Carrying amount		· ·	4
At 31 December 2021	1,100,000	5,406,687	6,506,687
At 31 December 2020	887,290	4,958,695	5,845,985

The company has no tangible assets.

The freehold property valuation was carried out on an open market basis in October 2021 by independent RICS certified valuers. The directors are in the opinion that the value of the revalued property is not materially misstated at the balance sheet date.

Plant and machinery items has been revalued at year end, by external valuers. These have been based on observable market values.

Tangible assets held at valuation

In respect of tangible assets held at valuation, aggregate cost, depreciation and comparable carrying amount that would have been recognised if the assets had been carried under the historical cost model are as follows:

Group	Freehold property £	Plant and machinery £	Total £
At 31 December 2021		-	-
Aggregate cost	1,930,661	5,083,858	7,014,519
Aggregate depreciation	(1,414,180)	(3,904,939)	(5,319,119)
Carrying value	516,481	1,178,919	1,695,400
At 31 December 2020			
Aggregate cost	1,905,357	4,984,451	6,889,808
Aggregate depreciation	(1,401,629)	(3,302,443)	(4,704,072)
Carrying value	503,728	1,682,008	2,185,736

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

17. TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Included within the carrying value of tangible assets are the following amounts relating to assets held under finance leases or hire purchase agreements:

Group	Plant and machinery
	£
At 31 December 2021	4,211,356
At 31 December 2020	4,219,423

18. INVESTMENTS

The group has no investments.

Company	Shares in group undertakings £
Cost	-
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021	4,185,353
Impairment	-
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021	_
Carrying amount	
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021	4,185,353
At 31 December 2020	4,185,353
	.,,200,000

Subsidiaries, associates and other investments

Details of the investments in which the parent company has an interest of 20% or more are as follows:

Subsidiant undortakings	Registered office	Class of share	Percentage of shares held
Subsidiary undertakings Pensord Holdings Limited	Tram Road Pontllanfraith Blackwood NP12 2YA	Ordinary	100
BM 203 Limited	Pensord Press, Tram Road Pontllanfraith Blackwood NP12 2YA	Ordinary	100
Pensord Press Limited	The Pensord Press Ltd Pontllanfraith Blackwood NP12 2YA	Ordinary	100

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

18. INVESTMENTS (continued)

			Percentage of
	Registered office	Class of share	shares held
Cambrian Printers Limited	C/O Pensord Press	Ordinary	100
	Tram Road	·	
	Pontllanfraith		
	Blackwood		
	NP12 2YA		

19. STOCKS

	Grou	р	Compa	ny
	2021 £	2020 £	2021 £	2020 £
Stock	350,249	274,743		_
	Committee American	All Company of the Co		- communes

20. DEBTORS

	Group		Company	
	2021 £	2020 £	2021 £	2020 £
Trade debtors	1,543,745	1,386,336	-	_
Amounts owed by group undertakings		· · · -	411,614	411,614
Deferred tax asset	219,798	219,798		· _
Prepayments and accrued income	125,824	186,659	_	_
Corporation tax repayable	66	79,973	_	_
Directors loan account	184,975	219,809	-	_
Other debtors	186,913	147,696	-	38,387
	2,261,321	2,240,271	411,614	450,001

21. CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year

	Group		Company	
	2021	2020	2021	2020
	£	£	£	£
Bank loans and overdrafts	78,650	73,728	_	***
Trade creditors	1,671,811	1,487,702	_	_
Accruals and deferred income	430,278	371,616	125	125
Social security and other taxes	112,501	103,587		_
Obligations under finance leases and hire				
purchase contracts	898,395	963,586	_	_
Director loan accounts		· -	_	78,458
Sales financing	708,617	538,896	_	· -
Other creditors	476,009	418,942	_	_
	4,376,261	3,958,057	125	78,583

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts are secured against the assets to which they relate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

22. CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year

	Group		Comp	any
	2021	2020	2021	2020
	£	£	£	£
Bank loans and overdrafts	619,704	693,285		-
Amounts owed to group undertakings Obligations under finance leases and hire	•••		4,526,545	4,526,545
purchase contracts	2,703,161	3,044,652	_	-
	3,322,865	3,737,937	4,526,545	4,526,545

The bank loans are secured by fixed and floating charges over all property, assets and rights of the Company. The Company and other companies forming part of the Group headed by Pensord Twenty10 Limited have cross-guaranteed the bank borrowings of each other.

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts are secured against the assets to which they relate.

The bankers of the subsidiary undertakings, Pensord Press Limited and Cambrian Printers Limited, hold fixed and floating charges over the assets of those companies.

23. FINANCE LEASES AND HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACTS

The total future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are as follows:

	Group		Company	
	2021	2020	2021	2020
	£	£	£	£
Not later than 1 year	898,395	963,586		
Later than 1 year and not later than 5				
years	2,703,161	2,777,409	_	-
Later than 5 years	_	267,243	-	-
				
	3,601,556	4,008,238	_	_
		TOTAL DESIGNATION OF THE PARTY	·	

24. PROVISIONS

Group	Deferred tax
•	(note 25)
	£
At 1 January 2021	410,482
Additions	123,507
At 31 December 2021	533,989

The company does not have any provisions.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

25. DEFERRED TAX

The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows:

	Group		Company	
	2021	2020	2021	2020
	£	£	£	£
Included in debtors (note 20)	219,798	219,798		
Included in provisions (note 24)	(533,989)	(410,482)	_	_
	(314,191)	(190,684)		
		22022200000000000		

The deferred tax account consists of the tax effect of timing differences in respect of:

	Group		Company	
	2021	2020	2021	2020
	£	£	£	£
Accelerated capital allowances	(641,758)	(484,129)		_
Unused tax losses	313,584	389,259	_	-
Deferred tax - other timing differences	13,983	(95,814)	_	_
Deferred tax - asset not provided	_	7,888	_	
Deferred tax not recognised	-	(7,888)	_	
	(314,191)	(190,684)	_	_
	autonomination part	was the same of th		

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans

The amount recognised in profit or loss as an expense in relation to defined contribution plans was £145,684 (2020: £155,923).

27. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The amounts recognised in the financial statements for government grants are as follows:

2	Group		Company	
	2021 £	2020 £	2021 £	2020 £
Recognised in other operating income: Government grants recognised directly in				
income	279,627	1,147,607		_

28. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Issued, called up and fully paid

	2021		2020	
	No.	£	No.	£
Ordinary shares of £1 each	70,000	70,000	70,000	70,000
	COLUMN TO THE PARTY OF THE PART	manuscript and the second	With the same of t	and the same of the same

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

29. RESERVES

Revaluation reserve - This reserve records the value of asset revaluations and fair value movements on assets recognised in other comprehensive income.

Profit and loss account - This reserve records retained earnings and accumulated losses.

30. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

	At 1 Jan 2021 £	Cash flows	At 31 Dec 2021 £
Cash at bank and in hand	106,711	(92,041)	14,670
Debt due within one year	(1,037,314)	60,269	(977,045)
Debt due after one year	(3,737,937)	415,072	(3,322,865)
	(4,668,540)	383,300	(4,285,240)

31. OPERATING LEASES

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

	Group		Company	
	2021 £	2020 £	2021 £	2020 £
Not later than 1 year Later than 1 year and not later than 5	37,645	43,356		••••
years	37,803	36,227	_	_
Later than 5 years	_	13,577		-
	75, 44 8	93,160	-	
	William Britain		ENTHERIN	distance

32. DIRECTORS' ADVANCES, CREDITS AND GUARANTEES

During the year the directors entered into the following advances and credits with the company and its subsidiary undertakings:

	2021			
	Balance	Advances/		
	brought	(credits) to	Amounts	Balance
	forward	the directors	repaid	outstanding
	£	£	£	£
Mr D J Coxon	206,167	4,817	(22,441)	188,543
Mr K Gater	13,641	421	(17,630)	(3,568)
	219,808	5,238	(40,071)	184,975

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Company

The company has taken advantage of the exemption, in accordance with paragraph 33.1A of FRS 102, from not disclosing transactions with other wholly owned group companies.

34. CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate controlling party is D Coxon by virtue of his majority shareholding in Pensord Twenty10 limited